AGREEMENT

Between

THE TOWN OF WESTFIELD

And

COMMUNICATIONS WORKERS OF AMERICA, AFL-CIO

Effective: January 1, 1995 through December 31, 1997

APRUZZESE, McDERMOTT,
MASTRO & MURPHY
A Professional Corporation
25 Independence Boulevard
P.O. Box 112
Liberty Corner, N.J. 07938
(908) 580-1776

TABLE OF CONTENTS

:[

AW 1 FF1088 PP: MESEL MCDERMOTT MASTRO & Mighes

PUFESSIONAL TRAPPARTING SEMESTRATE TO AND

ARTICLE	<u>DESCRIPTION</u>	PAGE
Ï -	Preamble	1
1	Recognition	1
: 2	Dues Deduction and Agency Shop	3
, 3	Management Rights	4
. 4	No Strike	5
5	Grievance Procedure	6
6	Probationary Period	9
7	Seniority	9
8	Layoffs and Recall	10
9	Job Posting	11
10	Promotions	12
11	Out Of Title Work	13
12	Non-Discrimination	13
13	Job Stewards	14
14	Notification To The Union	15
15	Bulletin Boards	15
16	Discipline	16
17	Holidays	16
18	Vacations	17
19	Sick Leave	19
20	Death In Family	20
21	Jury Duty	21
22	Premium Pay	21

TABLE OF CONTENTS - continue

ARTICLE	DESCRIPTION	PAGE
23	Longevity	22
24	Wages	23
25	Uniforms	23
26	Insurance	24
27	Safety and Health	25
28	Pension	25
29	Retiree Benefits	26
30	Separation Of Employment	27
31	Terminal Leave Pay	27
32	Severability	27
33	Duration of Agreement	28

CAMPIFECES
THEIZZESE, MCZERMOTT
TASTRO & MITTER
PRINCIPLE
PRINCIPL

PREAMBLE

This Agreement entered into by the Town of Westfield, hereinafter referred to as the "Town" and the Communications Workers of America, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the "Union", has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the Union and the Town, and to provide for conduct of the Town's business under methods that will further to the fullest extent possible the economy and efficiency of operations, elimination of waste, realization of maximum quantity and quality of productivity and service to the public, cleanliness and protection of property. It is the further intent and purpose of this Agreement to assure sound and mutually beneficial working and economic relations between the parties hereto, to provide an orderly and peaceful means of resolving any misunderstandings or differences which may arise, and to set forth herein agreements between the parties concerning rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment.

The Town and the Union agree that the working environment shall be characterized by mutual respect for the common dignity to which all individuals are entitled.

ARTICLE 1

RECOGNITION

The Town recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative for the collective negotiations unit which consists of all full-time and regularly employed part-time blue collar and white collar employees employed by the Town of

TAM STREET

(IASTRO DO 1) FF-1

(IASTRO DO 1)

Westfield, including the supervisor of buildings and maintenance, but excluding all managerial executives, confidential employees, supervisory employees within the meaning of the act, Police and Fire officers, craft employees and all divisional and departmental heads, Assistant Director of Recreation, Town Clerk, Municipal Court Administrator, Department of Public Works Employees, Crossing Guards and all other employees employed by the Town of Westfield.

If the Employer adds new or amended titles to the units that are clearly not managerial, supervisory or confidential, it agrees that within thirty (30) days, it will:

- (1) Notify the Union;
- (2) Give a copy of any job specification for the new or amended title to the Union;
- (3) Advise the Union of the proposed hours of work, wages and other terms and conditions of employment established for the title.

The Employer further agrees, if requested by the Union within thirty (30) days after notification to the Union as provided above, to schedule a meeting to review whether or not the new or amended title should be included in the unit, and if it is so included, to negotiate any disputes which may exist concerning such negotiable issues as appropriate wage rates. It is the intention of the parties to reach mutual agreement on inclusion of new or amended titles that appropriately belong in the unit without the necessity of instituting proceedings at

AW APPEARS
REZESE, MILES TO TO TAKE THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPER

PERC, and it is their further intention to use wage scales for existing titles as a basis to determine the appropriateness of the wage rate established for such new or amended titles.

ARTICLE 2

DUES DEDUCTION AND AGENCY SHOP

Upon receipt of a lawfully executed written authorization from an employee, the Town agrees to deduct the regular monthly Union dues of said employee from his/her paycheck. This deduction will be submitted to a Union official so designated in writing to receive such deductions. The Union will notify the Town in writing of the exact amount of such regular membership dues to be deducted. This authorization may be revoked once per year during the term of this Agreement by providing written notification of revocation to the Town prior to July 1st.

The Town agrees to deduct from the pay of each employee covered by this Agreement who does not furnish a written authorization for deduction of union dues, an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the present union dues. The Town agrees to deduct said dues each month commencing with the third (3rd) month of employment of such employee. A copy of a list of employees from whose pay such deductions were made shall also be delivered to the local Union President.

Deduction of Union dues made pursuant hereto shall be remitted by the Town to the Union, c/o Secretary/Treasurer, Communications Workers of America, AFL/CIO, 501 3rd Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20001-2797, by the tenth (10th) day

ANTIQUES

SPEZZENS MIDERWITT

ANTRO & MUSER

STREET ANTRO ANTRO

after the deductions are made or as soon as practicable in the month following the calendar month in which such deductions were made.

The Union agrees to indemnify and hold the Town harmless against any and all claims, suits, order or judgments brought or issued against the Town or the Union under the provisions of this Agreement, and for any attorney fees incurred by the Town in connection with any such claim or suits that may be filed.

ARTICLE 3

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Town has both the legal responsibility and the sole right to manage and conduct the municipality's business and, except as specificall, limited in this Agreement, to:

- (a) Direct the employees,
- (b) Hire, promote, transfer, assign, schedule, layoff and recall,
- (c) Suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action for good and just cause,
- (d) Control of all Town property.

The management and direction of the work force shall be in the sole discretion and the sole responsibility of the Town, and except as otherwise provided herein, the Town retains the sole and exclusive right to promulgate rules and regulations within applicable statutes; direct, designate, schedule and assign duties to the work force; to subcontract; plan, direct and control the entire operation of all departments; discontinue,

LAW PUTICES
THE PRESENCE SEW TO
MASTRO & MERROR
FESSIONAL SERVICES
AND PRESENCE SERVICES
AND SARR NO. 1

consolidate or reorganize any department or branch; transfer any or all operations to any location or discontinue the same in whole or in part; make technological improvement; install or remove equipment regardless of whether or not such action causes a reduction of any kind in the number of employees, or transfers in the work force, or requires the assignment of additional different duties to the employees in the work force, or causes the elimination or addition of titles or jobs, and carry out the ordinary and customary functions of management whether or not possessed or exercised by the Town prior to the execution of this Agreement, except as limited herein. All the rights, powers, discretion, authority and prerogatives possessed by the Town prior to the execution of this Agreement, whether exercised or not, are retained by and are to remain exclusively with the Town, except as limited herein.

ARTICLE 4

NO STRIKE

Section 1. There shall be no strikes, work stoppages, slowdowns or other interruptions of work, for any reason whether or not specified herein or contemplated by the parties at the time this contract is made, and whether or not the reason for such conduct is subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this contract. Any such action shall be a violation of this Agreement.

No officer or representative of the Union shall authorize, institute or condone any such activity. No employee shall

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY OF THE PROP

participate in any such activity. The Town shall have the right to take disciplinary action including discharge against any employee participating in a violation of the provisions of this Article. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or restrict the rights of any of the parties to this Agreement to pursue fully any and all remedies available under law in the event of a violation of this Article, including the right to institute civil action for damages and injunctive relief.

Section 2. In consideration of the foregoing, the Town agrees not to lock-out or cause to be locked out any employee covered under the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 5

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1. Any dispute involving the interpretation or application of any of the provisions in this agreement shall be a grievance and shall be settled and determined according to the following procedure which must be followed:

Step 1: The aggrieved employee or employees must present the grievance in writing to the immediate supervisor through the shop steward within 15 working days after knowledge of the grievance or the reason for the grievance has occurred, except that no time limit shall apply in case of violation of wage provisions of this agreement. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached with the immediate supervisor within 3 working days, the grievance may be appealed to Step 2.

COMPRESSIONAL CONTRACTOR CONTRACT

Step 2: The aggrieved employee or employees must present the written grievance to the Department Head or Board of Health where appropriate, through the shop steward within 5 working days from the answer in Step 1, and the Department Head shall submit an answer in writing within 5 working days. In cases where the Town Administrator is the Department Head, the Administrator shall designate a person to hear the grievance at Step 2. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached with the Department Head, the grievance may be appealed to Step 3 within 5 working days from the date of the Department Head answer or from the date the answer was due.

Step 3: The Local Union Staff Representative shall then take the matter up with the Town Administrator, or his designee. A meeting may be held at the Step 3 level and if such meeting is held, the aggrieved employee or employees and the shop steward may be in attendance at such meeting. The Union may also request that a reasonable number of witness attend such meeting and such request shall not be unreasonably denied. The Union shall have the right to examine the non confidential records pertaining to a specific grievance. A copy of such record can be requested and such request shall not be unreasonably denied. A decision shall be made within 5 working days.

TAW DEFICEN

PUZZESE, MITTEM IT

[ASTRO & MIT BORY

PERSONAL LIFEST S

SOFFENDENCE IT I SIG

Step 4: Arbitration. The Union may request that the grievance be submitted to arbitration if the grievance is not satisfactorily settled at the Step 3 level, except that discipline that involves warnings or suspensions of 5 days or

less shall not be subject to arbitration. The Union may, however, submit a disciplinary suspension of 5 days or less to arbitration where the employee has received suspensions that total six (6) days or more in the period of twelve months from the date of the first suspension. The Union shall notify the Town of its decision to submit the matter to binding arbitration within thirty (30) calendar days of the transmittal of the written answer by the Town Administrator or his designee.

The grievance may be submitted to the Public Employment Relations Commission for the appointment of an impartial arbitrator in accordance with its rules and regulations. The arbitrator shall have the authority to hear and determine the grievance, and the decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties. The arbitrator shall have no right to vary or modify the terms and conditions of this agreement and shall decide the dispute within 30 days after the hearing has been closed. The expense of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties. Only the Town or the Union shall have the right to submit a grievance to arbitration.

Section 2. The time limits specified in the grievance procedure shall be construed as maximums. These time limits may be extended upon mutual agreement which must be in writing.

Section 3. Any grievance not presented under the grievance procedures described herein within 15 working days of the occurrence of the condition giving rise to the grievance shall not thereafter be considered a grievance under this

AW PUPPLES

REVIEND MCL SENTER

MASTRO & MURE-N

MINESCONIC PROCESS

SERVINES TO THE CONTROL

CRES C

agreement unless reasons satisfactory to the Town are given and an explanation of the failure to present the grievance within such time limit.

ARTICLE 6

PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Section 1. All full-time permanent employees shall serve a probationary period of ninety (90) calendar days. The probation period may be extended by two additional periods of forty-five (45) additional calendar days upon mutual consent of the parties which shall be in writing. During this probationary period the Town reserves the right to terminate a probationary employee for any reason. Such termination shall not have recourse through the rievance and Arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7

SENIORITY

<u>Section 1</u>. Seniority shall mean a total of all periods of employment within classifications covered by this Agreement since the date of permanent hiring.

Section 2. An employee shall lose seniority rights and may have his/her employment terminated for any one of the following reasons:

- (a) Voluntary resignation,
- (b) Discharge for just cause,
- (c) Failure to return to work within five (5) working days of receipt of notice of recall, unless the employer extends this

CAN OFFICES
URITZESS, COURSE OF
MASTRO & MIRREY
MOFFSTINAL CRIMES
OFFFSTINAL CRIMES
ON COURSE
CRIMES OF COURSE

time period based upon good and sufficient reason presented by the employee,

- (d) Continuous lay-off for a period equal to employment service but not to exceed two (2) years.
- (e) Absence without notice for three (3) consecutive work days.

Section 3. A list of all employees in the unit covered by this Agreement shall be sent to the Union on January 15 and July 15 of each year.

ARTICLE 8

LAYOFFS AND RECALL

<u>Section 1</u>. In the event the Town reduces the working force, the following procedure shall apply:

- 1. Employees shall be laid off in the order of least total employment seniority provided the remaining employees have the ability to perform the work remaining to be done. Departmental differences will not be the basis for preventing an employee from exercising seniority rights under the terms of this Article.
- 2. The Town shall rehire qualified laid off employees in the order of greatest employment seniority. The Town may only hire from the open market when no employee has an unexpired term of preference for reemployment who is ready, willing, and qualified to be reemployed.

PRUZZESE ZEMNITA MASTRO N. PERN PROFESSIONAL PERNAL ... SEEPENSIONAL PERNAL ... Section 2. Notice of reemployment to an employee who has been laid off shall be made by registered or certified mail to the last known address of such employee.

ARTICLE 9

JOB POSTING

Section 1. Any vacancies or newly created positions other than entry level positions shall be posted prominently for at least eleven (11) working days prior to filling of the vacancy. The posting shall include, but not be limited to the classification, the salary, an abbreviated description of the job, and required qualifications and the procedure to be followed by employees interested in applying.

Section 1. Posted positions shall be filled from those applying in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. If no present employee has the necessary ability and aptitude to perform the required duties, then the Town may fill the job with a new employee.

Section 3. Employees on vacation have a right to bid immediately upon return from vacation provided they were on vacation the entire posting period. Employees out on sick leave will be given an opportunity to bid on a job vacancy, and it shall be the responsibility of the employee on sick leave to be aware of job vacancies. The Town shall furnish the Union with a copy of the job postings.

CAMP FERENS

PRUZZESE NO JERM ITT

(LASTRO & JUPPO I)

PERSONAL LUMPOPATO S

NORPENUENCE

LESTA MARKET

LESTA MARK

PROMOTIONS

Section 1. Where a promotional vacancy in the unit occurs and two (2) or more employees are under consideration for such vacancy, the Town shall promote the most senior qualified employee who bids the job. The procedure to determine the most senior qualified employee shall be to look first to the individual Department/Division where the vacancy exists, and then to the entire Town work force.

Section 2. An employee who is promoted shall serve a probationary period. If he/she is removed from the new job during the probationary period for failure to perform the new duties and responsibilities in a satisfactory manner, he/she shall be entitled to return to his/her former position without loss of seniority or other benefits.

Section 3. Where the Town determines that a vacancy exists in the unit (other than an promotional vacancy), any employee may request, in writing, reassignment to fill such vacancy. The vacancy shall be filled by the senior qualified employee from the same job classification who requests such reassignment. If no applicants apply from that specific job classification, then the senior qualified candidate from a different job classification who applies will be selected.

Section 4. Employees promoted outside the unit are deemed probationary in their new position for up to ninety (90) calendar days which is considered a trial period. If the

PUZZENE MODERNICT.
MASTRO & MURPON
ROTENDANCE MANAGE NO CONTROLOGICA POR C

employee is not retained in the new position, she/he shall be returned to her/his former position without loss of seniority.

Section 5. The Town shall provide job descriptions for each job in the unit.

ARTICLE 11

OUT OF TITLE WORK

The Town agrees that employees shall be assigned work appropriate to and within their job classification. Employees assigned to work of a higher title for more than 90 continuous working days and who fulfill all the duties of that position shall be compensated at the higher rate of pay after the 90th continuous day.

ARTICLE 12

NON-DISCRIMINATION

Section 1. The Town and the Union agree not to discriminate against any individual with respect to hiring, compensation, and other terms and conditions of employment because of such individual's race, color, creed, religion, marital status, sex, national origin, sexual orientation, age, political affiliation or protected union activity, nor will they limit, segregate or classify employees in any way to deprive any individual of employment opportunities for any of the above listed reasons.

<u>Section 2</u>. Whenever any words are used in this Agreement in the feminine gender, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the male gender.

LAW PROFICES
PROZZESE MODERM PO
MASTRO & MURPM
PROFISSIONAL PROFITS
PROFITSIONAL PROFIT

1.000

JOB STEWARDS

Section 1. The Town recognizes the right of the Union to designate job stewards and alternates.

Section 2. The authority of job stewards and alternates so designated by the Union shall include, but are not limited to the following duties and activities:

- The investigation and presentation of grievances in accordance with the provisions of the collective bargaining agreement.
- Meeting and conferring with employee's supervisors in pre-grievance meetings.
- Attend health and safety meetings, labor management meetings, and other authorized meetings.
- 4. Attend to Union business with prior approval of the shop steward's supervisor. Such approval will not be unreasonably denied.
- 5. Transmit communications authorized by the Local Union and its officers, to the Town or its representatives, both written or oral.
- 6. Employees engaged in Union activities who have been released for the day, shall be able to take such day as an unpaid day off.

Section 3. The Town shall grant release time without pay up to 6 days a year for members designated by the Union to

most formation

attend Union functions with 10 working days written notice to the Town.

Section 4. The Town agrees that Union representatives of the Communications Workers of America, AFL-CIO, Local or International shall have the right to visit the premises during working hours so long as such visit shall not interfere with Town operations or interfere with or compromise the security and confidentiality of the Municipal Court/Violations Bureau.

ARTICLE 14

NOTIFICATION TO THE UNION

Section 1. The Town will notify the designated Shop Steward in writing of all promotions, demotions, transfers, suspensions, and discharges.

Section 2. The Town will notify the Union and the designated Shop Steward in writing at least thirty (30) working days prior to a layoff, except in cases of emergency.

Section 3. The Town will notify the designated Shop
Steward of additions and deletions to the payroll of covered
employees as they occur.

<u>Section 4</u>. The Fown will notify the Union within one (1) week of any new hires covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 15

BULLETIN BOARDS

Bulletin boards will be provided by the Town at Town Hall and Public Works Center. Postings by the Union on such bulletin

LAW OFFICES

ORUZZESE, MCDERY

MASTRO & MARRY

ROFFSHINALA MARRY

SUBMESCENCE STATE --
TOWNS

TORISTICATES ASSESS

TORISTICATES

CHILDRO STA

boards are to be confined to official business of the Union with prior notification regarding such postings to the Town.

ARTICLE 16

DISCIPLINE

Section 1. The Town will not discharge, discipline or suspend any employee without just cause and will notify the Union steward in the event such action is taken. Warning notices involving lateness or absenteeism will be deleted from the personnel file of an employee upon request provided the employee has received no such warning notice for a period of one year from the date of the last notice.

Section 2. Other than an oral reprimand, the employees and the Union shall be furnished with a written copy of any disciplinary action taken, with the reasons therefore, within five (5) working days of the action.

ARTICLE 17

HOLIDAYS

<u>Section 1</u>. Holidays shall be those listed below:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King's
Birthday
Lincoln's Birthday
Washington's Birthday
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Independence Day

Labor Day Columbus Day

Veterans Day Thanksgiving Day Friday after Thanksgiving Christmas Employee's Birthday (effective in 1997)

Should the employee's birthday fall on another holiday, it will be observed on the next working day.

TAN OFFICES

PRUZZESE MOUNTAIN

MASTRO & MURPHY

PREPARAMETER PATER

SEPROMETER PATER

CHTY 1938 - TOTAL

garages.

When a holiday listed above falls on Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.

When a holiday listed above falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday.

<u>Section 2</u>. Part-time employees will receive their daily rate of pay for any holiday that falls on a regularly scheduled work day for that part timer.

Section 3. In recognition of their obligation to work on holidays at straight time rates of pay, the Town will continue the existing practice in the Police Department of paying dispatchers for all listed holidays on the basis of eight (8) hours pay per day in addition to their annual salary.

ARTICLE 18

VACATIONS

Section 1. All full-time permanent employees, whether paid on an annual salary basis or an hourly basis, shall be granted annual vacation leave with pay as follows:

- (a) Up to five (5) working days' vacation will be granted to employees during the first calendar year in which employed by the Town. One day of vacation will be allowed for each two (2) full calendar months of service in such year up to a maximum of five (5) days.
- (b) Up to ten (10) working days' vacation will be granted to all employees during each year from the second through the fifth calendar year in which continually employed by the Town. In the second such calendar year, and in each successive year,

LAW OPERCY
DRI VVESE, MCDERMOTT
MASTRO & MURPHY
HISTORIAN TO STATE
1 TO STATE
2 BT 1 TORSE
2 BT 1 TORSE

April on a second

- five (5) working days vacation will be granted, plus one (1) additional day of vacation for each two full calendar months of service in the previous year of service, up to a maximum of five (5) additional vacation days for a total of ten (10) days.
- (c) Fifteen (15) working days' vacation shall be allowed annually with completion of five (5) anniversary years of continuous service.
- (d) Eighteen (18) working days' vacation shall be allowed annually with completion of ten (10) anniversary years of continuous service.
- (e) Twenty (20) working days' vacation shall be allowed annually with completion of fifteen (15) anniversary years of continuous service.
- (f) Twenty-three (23) working days' vacation shall be allowed annually with completion of twenty (20) anniversary years of continuous service.
 - (g) Twenty-five (25) working days' vacation shall be allowed annually with completion of twenty-five (25) anniversary years of continuous service.
 - 'h) Employees entitled to either ten (10) working days vacation, fifteen (15) working days vacation, or eighteen (18) working days vacation will be allowed to schedule up to five (5) days of this entitlement in aggregates of single days provided two (2) days prior notice is given to the Town. Employees entitled to twenty (20) or more working days vacation will be allowed to schedule up to ten (10) days of this entitlement in

LAW OFFICES
THE MEDICAL TO CASTRO & MURPHY
TOPESTONAL CONTROL OF THE CONTROL OF T

aggregates of single days provided two (2) days prior notice is given to the Town.

- (i) Preference for vacation selection shall be awarded employees in the order of greatest total employment seniority.
- (j) Vacations shall be scheduled throughout the calendar year.
- (k) In the event a holiday named in this Agreement falls during an employee's vacation period, such employee shall receive an additional day's vacation with pay.
- (1) Provided thirty (30) calendar days prior notice is given to the Town, employees shall receive their vacation pay before commencing their vacation.
- Section 2. Part time employees shall be entitled to one

 (1) week of paid vacation per year upon completion of three

 years of service with the Town.

ARTICLE 19

SICK LEAVE

Section 1. Employees with one (1) or more years employment shall be entitled to fifteen (15) sick leave days at the beginning of each calendar year without loss of pay.

Section 2. Employees with less than one (1) year employment shall be entitled to one (1) sick leave day for each month worked.

Section 3. Unused sick leave days shall be accumulated from year to year, for a maximum of ninety (90) days. When an employee has accumulated ninety (90) sick leave days, he or she

CAW OFFICES
TRIZZESE, MCDERMOTT,
MANTHS & MI REMA
POTESSIONAL PROPERTY NO. 12 COMMUNICATION CONTRACTOR NO. 12 COMMUNICATION CO

will be given up to fifteen (15) additional days for use in a given year.

<u>Section 4</u>. The current wage continuation insurance plan shall continue in full force and effect.

<u>Section 5</u>. There will be sick leave redemption on retirement as follows:

One (1) day for every 3 days of accumulated sick days.

Section 6. Effective the first pay period following final approval of this fully executed contract, part time employees shall be entitled to sick leave on a pro rated basis. The pro rated calculation shall be based upon budgeted hours per year for the part time position related to 1820 hours per year.

ARTICLE 20

DEATH IN FAMILY

Section 1. In the event of a death in the immediate family of an employee, the Town will grant a maximum of a four (4) day leave of absence between the date of death and burial with pay to the employee. The immediate family will be construed as meaning and including wife, husband, child, father, current father-in-law, mother, current mother-in-law, sister, brother, grandparents or grandchildren.

Section 2. In the event of a death of an employee's current brother-in-law or current sister-in-law, the Town will grant the day of the funeral, if a working day, off with pay to the employee.

LAW OFFICES
RUZZESE, McDERMOTT,
MASTRO & MURPHY
ROPESSIGNAL CORPORATION
POPENSIEVE BOYLEVARD
POPENSIE NAJ 07938
1608/1580-1778

Section 3. This benefit shall be applicable to part time employees for any work days that occur within the time periods provided herein.

ARTICLE 21

JURY DUTY

<u>Section 1</u>. An employee who is called to jury duty shall immediately notify the Town.

Section 2. An employee shall not be required to report back for work on any day in which court is attended for jury duty service, regardless of the employee's shift.

Section 3. An employee while on jury duty will retain all monies awarded by the court in addition to his salary.

ARTICLE 22

PREMIUM PAY

Section 1. The Town agrees to pay one and one-half (1-1/2) times the straight time rate of pay in the following instances:

- (1) All hours spent in the service of the Town in excess of forty (40) hours in any work week.
- (2) All hours spent in the service of the Town on any paid holiday in addition to regular straight time holiday pay.
- (3) There shall be no pyramiding of overtime.

Section 2. Effective the first pay period following final approval of this fully executed contract, the Town agrees to pay all employees covered hereunder who normally work less than forty (40) hours per week the straight time rate of pay in cash or compensatory time at its discretion for all hours spent in

LAW OFFICES
PRUZZESÉ, MCDERMOTT,
MASTRO & MURPHY
PROFESSIONAL COMPONATION
1 INDEPENDENCE BOULEVARD
PO BOX 112
JURENTY COMMEN, NJ. 07908

90al 380-1776

the service of the Town in excess of their normal work week up to and including forty (40) hours per week. Also effective upon approval of this contract, employees called back to work (as distinguished from overtime for starting shift early or ending shift late) shall be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours pay at straight time or time and one-half as applicable, except dispatchers who shall continue to receive three (3) hours call back pay in accordance with existing practice in the Police Department.

ARTICLE 23

LONGEVITY

Section 1. Except as provided in Section 2 of this

Article, full-time permanent employees of the Town covered by

this Agreement shall continue to be paid a longevity payment in

accordance with existing practice and the following schedule:

Completion of five (5) consecutive years Completion of ten (10) consecutive years Completion of fifteen (15) consecutive years Completion of twenty (20) consecutive years Completion of twenty-five (25) consecutive years	Years of Service	Longevity Percentage
Completion of fifteen (15) 5.0% consecutive years Completion of twenty (20) 7.0% consecutive years Completion of twenty-five (25) 9.0%		1.0%
consecutive years Completion of twenty (20) 7.0% consecutive years Completion of twenty-five (25) 9.0%		3.0%
consecutive years Completion of twenty-five (25) 9.0%		5.0%
the first of the first for the first		7.0%
		9.0%

LAW OFFICES
PRUZZESE, MCDERNOTT,
MASTRO & MURPHY
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
5 INDEPENDENCE BOLLENARD
PO BOX 112
JERRY CORNER, N.J. 07936
19901 580-1776

<u>Section 2</u>. Employees hired on or after January 1, 1991 shall not be eligible to receive longevity payments.

WAGES

Section 1. During the term of this Agreement, full and part time employees covered hereunder who are in the employ of the Town on and after December 31, 1994 shall receive the following adjustments to salary or hourly rate:

- A. Effective 1/1/95 4.35%
- B. Effective 1/1/96 3.90%
- C. Effective 1/1/97 3.75%

Section 2. Annexed as Exhibit A to this Agreement is a salary schedule which is to be used if salary adjustments are required for promotions or if salary rates are to be established for employees moving from part time to full time or starting salaries for new hires. The salary schedule is not included for the purpose of establishing an increment program.

Section 3. Payment under this Article will be made only to those employees on the payroll at the time of the formal execution of this agreement.

ARTICLE 25

UNIFORMS

The following employees will be entitled to the following uniform allowance:

- Pool Maintenance Supervisor Rubberized Rain Suit, Steel
 Toe Shoes and Hat
- Senior Sanitarian Protective Smock, Lab Coat, Steel Toe Shoes
- Sanitarian Protective Smock, Lab Coat, Steel Toe Shoes

Jun 1 - 1 - 2

Building Maintenance Workers: The Town will continue to supply uniforms for building custodians that are equal to that supplied for the Public Works Department (including steel toe shoes.)

The Town of Westfield will continue to purchase uniforms for dispatchers and parking violation officers. The Town will also continue to pay a maintenance allowance of \$130.00 per year to dispatchers and parking violations officers, and will provide parking violation officers with work shoes as such shoes are provided to the Public Works Department.

ARTICLE 26

INSURANCE

Section 1. The Town will continue to provide health insurance for full time employees and eligible members of their family consisting of all present hospital, medical, surgical and major medical insurance presently provided through New Jersey Blue Cross/Blue Shield or substantial equivalent. Effective 1/1/97, the deductibles under the terms of the plan shall be \$250.00 per annum for the individual and \$400.00 per annum for family in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Section 2. The Town will continue to provide dental coverage under the New Jersey Dental Service Plan, Inc. (Program 111-A) or substantially equivalent coverage for the employee and spouse. Effective January 1, 1997 a full family dental program with orthodontia coverage on a 50/50 basis to a maximum of \$1,000.00 will be included under the provisions of this Article.

Employees will contribute to the cost of this benefit when costs exceed ten percent (10%) over the cost of the previous plan year.

Section 3. Eligible employees will continue to be included in the Town's wage continuation program.

ARTICLE 27

SAFETY AND HEALTH

Section 1. The Town shall provide safe and healthful working conditions and will provide employees with wearing apparel, tools or devices that may be reasonably necessary to insure their safety and health. Employees will abide by all applicable safety rules and will wear protective apparel that is provided by the Town, and failure to do so will subject such employee to disciplinary action.

Section 2. A Safety Committee has been established by the Town and the Union shall have the right to appoint a representative to that Committee.

ARTICLE 28

PENSION

Section 1. Each employee shall be enrolled for all benefit entitlement provided within the Public Employee Retirement System.

Section 2. Pension benefits shall be based on regular wages.

LAW OFFICES
RUZZESE, MCDERW , —
MASTRO & MURPHY
ADERSTONAL CUM
ADERSTONAL CUM
AT JONAL CUM
TO JO

11415/00-273

RETIREE BENEFITS

Section 1. An employee on the payroll as of January 1, 1995 who retires thereafter shall be entitled to continue under the Town's Health Benefits Program (employee and eligible dependent coverage applicable at the time of retirement) provided he/she has reached age fifty-five (55) with at least twenty-five (25) years of creditable service and said coverage shall terminate when such individual reaches age sixty-five (65) or upon death prior to age sixty-five (65). This shall not include coverage for employees who retire on disability or deferred retirement (commonly known as vesting). In the event the retiree dies prior to age sixty-five (65) and leaves a surviving spouse and/or eligible dependents, coverage will continue until the spouse reaches age sixty-five (65) or the dependents are no longer eligible for coverage.

Section 2. In the event an employee retires before reaching his/her fifty-fifth (55th) birthday, he/she shall receive single coverage with Rider J paid for by the Town until he/she reaches age fifty-five (55) and becomes covered under the provisions of Section 1 of this Article.

Section 3. The benefits to retired employees as provided for in this Article are limited to the term of this Agreement and become a subject of negotiations.

LAW UPPICES
1991 77 ENE, MC UEHMO TO
MASTRO & MURPHY
1997 ENSIGNAL COPPORT LAY
1997 ENSIGNAL COPPORT LAY
1997 PORTING NO LOTE TO
1998 TROUTETT

SEPARATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Upon resignation in good standing, the Town shall pay all monies to the employee including vacation pay.

ARTICLE 31

TERMINAL LEAVE PAY

Each full time and part time employee shall be entitled to terminal leave pay upon retirement in accordance with the following schedule:

- 1 month pay after 20 years of service
- 2 months pay after 25 years of service

ARTICLE 32

SEVERABILITY

Section 1. If any Article or Section or part thereof of this Agreement should be declared invalid for any reason whatsoever, such decision shall not affect the remaining portions of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect; and to this end the provisions of the Agreement are hereby declared to be severable.

Section 2. If any Article or Section or part thereof is held invalid or enforcement of or compliance with which has been restrained, the parties shall enter into immediate negotiations after receipt of written notice of desired amendments by either the Town or the Union for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement of such Article or Section or part thereof during the period of invalidity or restraint.

LAW OFFICES
PRUZZESE, MCDZRMOTE
MASTRO & MURPHY
MOFFISIONAL LIMBORIES IN
NOCEROBENCE POLICENATO
EDITORIAN IN TOTAL
MANUAL CONTRACTOR IN TOTAL
MANUAL CONTRACTOR
MANUAL CONTRACTOR IN TOTAL
MANUAL CONTRACTOR IN TO

:|

DURATION

Section 1. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from January 1, 1995 to and including December 31, 1997, and shall continue from year to year thereafter unless written notice of desire to cancel or terminate the Agr: ement is served by either party upon the other at least sixty (60) days prior to date of expiration.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto affixed their signatures.

B₩

COMMUNICATION WORKERS OF AMERICA, AFL-CIO

LAW UPFICES RITZZENE, MCDERMOTT CASTRO & MURPHY 1 1 X 24

LATE HYER

46013

TOWN OF WESTFIELD

- 28 -